
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Tuesday, 4th June, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby          Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on  6 February 2019 1 - 4

4. Nuclear Team Overview 5 - 10

5. Nuclear Position Statements 11 - 14

6. Nuclear Prospectus 15 - 22

7. Nuclear Projects - Verbal Update 

8. Exempt Information 

The Chair to move:
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on the 
grounds that, if they were present, there could be disclosed to them exempt 
information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the 
Act.

9. Planning - Verbal Update 

10. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be held on 
Tuesday 6 August 2019 at 2:00pm in the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland 
Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven, CA28 7SJ.

Membership: Councillors Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), David Banks, Sean Cullen, 
Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore, Steven Morgan and Sam Pollen.

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack





STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 6 FEBRUARY 2019

Present: Councillors Raymond Gill, in the Chair; Yvonne Clarkson, Gwynneth Everett, 
David Moore and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Steve Smith (Interim Nuclear Projects Manager), 
Robert Ward (Nuclear Sector Development Manager), Mitchell McCombe (Nuclear Sector 
Development Officer), Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer) and Andrew Clarke 
(Communications and Engagement Manager).

SN 18/32 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter Connolly.

SN 18/33 Declarations of Interest 

There were no Declarations of Interests made at this meeting.

SN 18/34 Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 December 2018 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2018 be signed by the 
Chair as a correct record.

SN 18/35 Radioactive Waste Management GDF Site Evaluation Process 

Councillor David Moore provided a brief overview of the Government’s new GDF process that 
was launched just prior to Christmas 2018.
It was stated that the process was different to the previous one and would be ‘Grass Roots’ 
up. Any individual could apply and Local Authorities would be consulted.
Only those in the process would have the right of veto.
It was believed that Copeland Borough Council should be involved in any process as current 
host community for nuclear waste.
Above all, the Council wanted the waste to be stored safely. 
Any decision on taking part in the process would be one for Full Council at the appropriate 
time.
It was believed that no storage would be available until at least 2040.

Members were then provided with documents from Radioactive Waste Management and the 
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy, following which the Interim Nuclear 
Projects Manager explained the process in more detail and a discussion took place. 

RESOLVED:- that
a) The current position with regards the launch of the Government process and the 

contents of the revised “Working with Communities” policy paper be noted,
b) The suggested programme of Member briefing sessions with a view to determining a 

Council position on the Government’s process be agreed,
c) Comments relating to RMW’s proposed ‘Site Evaluation’ public consultation be noted,
d) The Chief Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 

Commercial Services and the Chair of SNEB be granted delegated authority to 
respond to the consultation.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



e) The publication of a range of related technical position papers published by the 
Committee on Radioactive Waste Management (CoRWM) be noted.  

SN 18/36 Consultation Response on the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority's Draft Business 
Plan for 2019 to 2022 

The Board considered the draft consultation response on the Nuclear Decommissioning 
Authority Draft Business Plan for 2019 to 2022.

Members were advised that although the response deadline was 4th February 2019, an 
extension had been agreed to 8 February 2018 in order that this Board could make comment.

Following discussion, the Board thanked the Nuclear officers for their hard work.  

RESOLVED:- that
a) The proposed consultation response on the NDA’s draft Business Plan be reviewed 

and the comments made incorporated before being submitted to the NDA. 
b) The Chief Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 

Commercial Services and the Chair of SNEB be granted delegated authority to finalise 
and submit the consultation response.

SN 18/37 The Case for Accelerated Decommissioning of Calder Hall 

The Board received a report setting out the potential case for acceleration of decommissioning 
of Calder Hall on the Sellafield site. This was in response to work being undertaken by the 
Nuclear Decommissioning Authority reviewing the strategy of decommissioning of the UK’s 
Magnox Reactor Fleet.

During the discussion that followed, Members expressed their opinion that this was a thorough 
and pro-active response for which the nuclear officers should be congratulated.

RESOLVED:- that
a) The report be received, and
b) The Chief Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 

Commercial Services and the Chair of Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board be granted 
delegated authority to develop the case for accelerated decommissioning of Calder 
Hall.

SN 18/38 BEIS Advanced Modular Reactor Competition 

The Nuclear Sector Development Manager introduced a report which presented an overview 
of the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) competition on 
Advanced Modular Reactors.

During the discussion that followed, Members were reminded that a workshop had been 
arranged for 27 February 2019 to which all members were invited.

RESOLVED:- that 
a) The report regarding to the UK Government’s Advanced Modular Reactor competition 

be noted, and
b) Further engagement by Council Officers with external stakeholders to ensure 

Copeland plays a role and benefits from the next phase of nuclear technology 
development in the UK be agreed.

Page 2



SN 18/39 The Impact of the United Kingdom's Withdrawal from the European Union on the 
Nuclear Sector 

The Board received a report on the possible impacts of the UK’s withdrawal from the 
European Union on the nuclear sector either withdrawal under the Government’s proposed 
withdrawal agreement or leaving the EU with no deal. 

The definitive arrangements for what will happen after 29th March will depend on the nature of 
the Brexit scenario that is realised. Where there is a transition period or similar, the 
arrangements noted in the agenda report would take effect at the end of that period. However, 
confidence should be taken from the fact that the changes could be implemented on 29th 
March in the case of a no deal.

RESOLVED:- that the report regarding the impact of the UK’s withdrawal from the EU on the 
nuclear sector be noted. 

SN 18/40 Projects Update 

The Interim Nuclear Projects Manager updated the Board on Nuclear projects.
It was stated that following the decision to close down the NuGen operation at Moorside, the 
site would be returned to its original state by the end of March 2019.

It was further stated that a Moorside Strategic Partnership had been created to explore the 
potential site for future nuclear development.

RESOLVED :- that the update be received. 

SN 18/41 Planning Update 

The Senior Planning Officer provided the Board with an update of developments at Sellafield 
Limited.

RESOLVED:- That the Update be noted.

SN 18/42 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be held on Tuesday 2 April 
2019 at 2:00pm, in the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Whitehaven.

The Meeting closed at 4.05 pm 

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 040619

Nuclear & Energy Overview

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary

This paper presents an overview of the scope of work of the Copeland Borough Council 
Nuclear & Energy Team, the roles within the Team and links to recent Nuclear Portfolio Holder 
reports and Strategic Nuclear & Energy Board (SNEB) agendas for reference. This is intended 
to provide members with an understanding of the work of the Team and to highlight current 
priority issues that are likely to be considered at upcoming board meetings.

Recommendation

1. That members note the information presented in this paper, and familiarise themselves 
with the issues covered on recent SNEB agendas.

1. Introduction

1.1. It is the role of the Nuclear and Energy Team to maintain awareness of nuclear and 
wider energy related policy and industry developments, to interpret their relevance 
to Copeland, and to work with internal and external partners to respond in such a way 
that ensures the Council’s aspirations, role and responsibilities are understood by all 
involved in the nuclear and energy agenda.

1.2. This enables the Council to influence the content of strategies of other bodies where 
they could have an impact on the delivery of the Council’s objectives. The Team has a 
business-critical function in ensuring that maximum social and economic benefit is 
secured from the nuclear, energy and radioactive waste management activities 
undertaken within the Borough, including legacy activities as well as potential future 
missions.

1.3. The team consists of:

 Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager
 Nuclear Sector Development Manager
 Nuclear Sector Development Officer
 Nuclear Project Support Officer
 Principal Planning Officer/Nuclear Lead

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2. Nuclear Programme

2.1. Typical activities undertaken by the Nuclear & Energy Team include:

 Maintenance of an up-to-date perspective and information source on 
international, national, and corporate-energy policies;

 Response to UK Policy developments affecting the nuclear and wider energy 
industry including response to government consultations;

 Pursuing opportunities to maximise the benefits to the local nuclear & energy 
sectors through, for example, the Government’s Industrial Strategy, the Nuclear 
Sector Deal and the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership’s Local Industrial 
Strategy;

 Leading the Council’s engagement with local and national nuclear and energy 
stakeholders (including Government Departments and their agencies, national 
and local partners and Nuclear Site License Companies) on decommissioning 
issues, radioactive waste and nuclear materials management matters, 
movement and access issues, infrastructure and planning issues, security and 
future nuclear and energy sector opportunities, in partnership with other 
Council services through the provision of a coordinated programme;

 Working with internal and external partners as appropriate to ensure that the 
Council’s economic strategy, planning policies and wider sub-regional related 
strategies reflect the potential for expanding and diversifying the current 
nuclear and energy sector activities in the Borough, and elsewhere within West 
Cumbria, to contribute to the growth aspirations of the Council and local 
communities;

 Leading the Council’s interaction with major infrastructure projects and new 
nuclear missions, including large scale new nuclear generation, geological 
disposal and others such as small modular reactors;

 Identification and maximisation of potential new nuclear or energy-related 
commercial opportunities and diversification activities;

 Undertake research and policy-analysis to develop the Council’s understanding 
of policy developments that fall within the nuclear and energy remit, and which 
impact Copeland.

2.2. An overview of the Nuclear & Energy Team’s “Nuclear Programme” may be found at 
Appendix A.

2.3. In recognition of the role that the nuclear sector plays in Copeland’s economy and 
community, since 2015 the Council has maintained a suite of Nuclear Position 
Statements. These statements ensure that the Council’s interactions with the nuclear 
sector consistently reflect the Council’s agreed position on nuclear matters – referred 
to throughout the presentation (not for discussion, but will be reviewed in coming 
months).

Page 6



2.4. The Nuclear & Energy Team works closely with colleagues in:

Development Management: in relation to planning applications under the relevant 
legislative frameworks such as the Town and Country Planning Act on matters relating 
to planning applications through the PPA with Sellafield Ltd;

Economic Development: to ensure that the Council’s economic vision and strategies 
reflect the wider policies and strategies of the Council’s external nuclear partners and 
stakeholders;

Strategic Planning: in relation to the production of the Council’s Local Plan.

2.5. The Team works closely with the Nuclear Portfolio Holder, and reports to the Council’s 
Strategic Nuclear & Energy Board.

2.6. The Nuclear & Energy Team also deals with Nationally Significant Infrastructure 
Projects (NSIP’s), which include some statutory requirements as components of the 
Development Consent Order (DCO) process. As such, the Team reports to the 
Council’s NSIP Panel, as appropriate.

3. Portfolio Holder Reports

3.1. The Nuclear Portfolio Holder reports to Executive Committee on nuclear matters, 
which are then included in the Mayor’s Executive Report to Full Council. The recent 
reports may be found via the following links:

9th April 2019:

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s7904/Executive%20Report%20to%
20Council%20April%2019.pdf 

4th December 2018:

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s7364/Executive%20Report%20to%
20Council.pdf 

4. SNEB Agendas

4.1. Recent SNEB agenda may be accessed via the following links:

11th April 2019:

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g726/Public%20reports%20pack%20
11th-Apr-
2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10 

6th February 2019:

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g648/Public%20reports%20pack%20
06th-Feb-
2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10 

Page 7

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s7904/Executive%20Report%20to%20Council%20April%2019.pdf
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s7904/Executive%20Report%20to%20Council%20April%2019.pdf
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s7364/Executive%20Report%20to%20Council.pdf
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s7364/Executive%20Report%20to%20Council.pdf
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g726/Public%20reports%20pack%2011th-Apr-2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g726/Public%20reports%20pack%2011th-Apr-2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g726/Public%20reports%20pack%2011th-Apr-2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g648/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Feb-2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g648/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Feb-2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g648/Public%20reports%20pack%2006th-Feb-2019%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10


18th December 2018:

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g647/Public%20reports%20pack%20
18th-Dec-
2018%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10 

4.2. The intention is to highlight current priority issues that are likely to be considered at 
upcoming Board meetings, and it is requested that members familiarise themselves 
with these papers.

Page 8

https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g647/Public%20reports%20pack%2018th-Dec-2018%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g647/Public%20reports%20pack%2018th-Dec-2018%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://copeland.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g647/Public%20reports%20pack%2018th-Dec-2018%2014.00%20Strategic%20Nuclear%20and%20Energy%20Board.pdf?T=10


APPENDIX A

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 040619

Nuclear Positions Statement

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary

Originally produced in 2015 the Council’s Nuclear Position Statements recognise the 
significant impact that the nuclear sector has on the communities, economic well-being and 
the environment of the Borough.

The statements aim to provide a consistent position for Members and officers for the Council’s 
engagement with our nuclear partners, communities and the supply chain.

Recommendation

1. That members of the Board provide comments on the draft position statements in 
advance of the next meeting of the Board, where an updated set of statements will be 
presented for approval.

1. Introduction

1.1. In recognition of the role that the nuclear sector plays in Copeland’s economy, 
community and environment, since 2015 the Council has maintained a suite of 
Nuclear Position Statements. These statements ensure that the Council’s interactions 
with nuclear sector partners consistently reflect the Council agreed position on 
nuclear matters.

2. Case for Change

2.1. A review of the statements is justified by a number of developments in international 
and national policy, publication of new and updated strategies by key industry 
partners and changes locally since the last iteration of the statements.

2.2. The developments that have potential implications for Copeland include:

 In light of growing public concern over global heating, unsustainable use of 
resources, and ecological damage to wildlife and habitats, more than 70 local 
authorities across the UK have declared “climate emergencies”, with the aim of 
galvanising support for the climate change agenda and setting a clear carbon-
neutrality target;

 In response, the Committee on Climate Change published a 2019 report, Net 
Zero – The UK’s contribution to stopping global warming, which recommended 
a net zero carbon target of 2050 for the UK, in order to meet international 
climate obligations;

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 However, the International Energy Agency’s 2019 report notes a "growing 
mismatch" between current trends in energy investment and the paths to 
meeting the Paris Agreement and other sustainable development goals. 
Likewise, the UK Parliament Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy Select 
Committee launched an inquiry into financing energy infrastructure, in 
recognition of the hole in UK Energy Policy following investment decisions at 
Moorside and Wylfa. In late 2018, Toshiba announced the wind-up of 
NuGeneration Limited due to a failure to secure investment in the project, which 
had intended to deliver 3.4GW of large-scale nuclear capacity at the Moorside 
site;

 The formation of the Moorside Strategic Partnership demonstrates cross-party 
commitment from local and central government and business leaders to ensure 
the delivery of a project at Moorside that is crucial to the UK’s energy future, 
and to the economic aspirations of the region;

 In 2019, BEIS is due to make a multi-million pound investment in 
commercialisation of a number of advanced reactor technologies that could 
offer an alternative, cheaper, quicker, more flexible low carbon energy solution 
either instead of or alongside large scale nuclear.

 Concurrently, a number of vendors are developing Small Modular Reactor 
technology in the UK and internationally, that could be commercially deployable 
on a similar timescale;

 Sitting under the UK Industrial Strategy, the Nuclear Sector Deal identifies a 
number of key targets for 2030:

o 30% reduction in the cost of nuclear new build, through implementing a 
different approach;

o 20% reduction in the cost of legacy waste management and 
decommissioning;

o For the sector to deliver £2bn of UK and international contract wins;
o To reach at least 40% women in nuclear.

The Sector Deal is being implemented by industry partners, with oversight from 
the Nuclear Industry Association and BEIS.

 Under a new governance structure, the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) has aligned its Strategy Groups to the foundations of the Industrial 
Strategy, and its Sector Panels to the sectors that are relevant to Cumbria’s 
economy. Membership of the Nuclear Sector Panel presents an opportunity to 
influence development of Phase 2 of the Nuclear Sector Deal and demonstrate 
how place-specific capability can help to tackle the Nuclear Sector “Grand 
Challenges”;

 The LEP has developed a Local Industrial Strategy for Cumbria, due for final 
publication in Autumn 2019;

Page 12



 In 2018 BEIS released the revised Implementing Geological Disposal: Working 
with Communities policy, which along with RWM Ltd’s Site Evaluation Process, 
will lead to the selection of a suitable site for geological disposal of radioactive 
waste in England;

 In 2018, the Public Accounts Committee published a report on the NDA’s 
Progress on Risk Reduction at Sellafield, which made a number of 
recommendation to BEIS, NDA and Sellafield Ltd in relation to improvement of 
performance in delivery and governance of risk reduction projects at Sellafield, 
and relating to the NDA’s local socio-economic contribution;

 Various developments in NDA Strategy, including:

o Magnox Ltd is due to become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the NDA
o A review is underway of Magnox Reactor Decommissioning Strategy 

across the fleet;
o Alternative options are being considered for site remediation and site end 

states
o An updated Integrated Waste Management Strategy has been published, 

following consultation
o A Progress on Plutonium paper was published.

 The end of reprocessing at ThORP in November 2018 represents a change of 
scope at Sellafield, and also removes a major revenue stream for the NDA, while 
new scope will continue to be developed as new opportunities are explored to 
deliver the site’s mission safer, sooner;

 As the Sellafield Transformation programme progresses, more scope will be 
delivered by the supply chain, through new partnerships such as the Programme 
and Project Partners (PPP) framework and alternative delivery methods (“small 
Sellafield, big supply chain”);

 There have also been a number of regulatory changes that impact the nuclear 
sector and Copeland:

o Update to Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) 
Regulations;

o Publication of English, Scottish and Welsh Environment Agencies joint 
guidance on “Management of radioactive waste from the 
decommissioning of nuclear sites: guidance on the requirements for 
release from radioactive substances regulation” (also known as GRR);

o The implementation of a domestic nuclear safeguards regime and other 
changes following the UK’s withdrawal from the European Union.

2.3. The Position Statements have been updated to reflect the need for the Council to 
agree a position on the above matters, either where they affect the current stated 
position, or where no position was previously stated.

Page 13



3. Next Steps

3.1. Members are requested to review the draft Nuclear Position Statements and provide 
input and comments to the Nuclear Sector Development Manager no fewer than 
seven days in advance of the next meeting of the Board, to allow time for comments 
to be incorporated.

3.2. At the next Board meeting, an updated set of statements will be presented for 
approval and a request made to escalate the agreed statements for consideration and 
endorsement by Executive Committee.

Page 14



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 040619

Nuclear Prospectus

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary

This paper presents the context and drivers behind the commission of a new Economic Vision 
for Copeland and a “Nuclear Prospectus” document, which will highlight the value of West 
Cumbria’s nuclear capability, skills and assets in delivery of the Nuclear Sector Deal and UK 
Industrial Strategy. This project will support the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Strategy 
by capturing opportunities to secure investment into the Borough and to attract future 
generations to establish their lives and careers in Copeland.

Recommendation

1. That members of the Board note the information presented in this paper.

1. Economic Context

1.1. Copeland Borough Council and the communities it represents have a long history of 
involvement with the nuclear industry, stretching back over the last 70 years to the 
first commercial nuclear power station at Calder Hall. Since, the Borough has been 
host to “firsts” in spent fuel reprocessing, radioactive waste management and 
decommissioning. The Borough is host to the Sellafield site, which holds much of the 
remaining UK nuclear waste, spent fuel and nuclear material inventory and is the 
focus of world-leading projects to meet the uniquely complex decommissioning 
challenge posed by the UK’s nuclear legacy. The site also continues to provide a critical 
national service in support of the UK’s operational reactor fleet. The Borough is also 
the host community for the:

 Headquarters of the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA)
 National Low Level Waste Repository (LLWR)
 Central laboratory of the National Nuclear Laboratory (NNL)
 Various University-led research and training facilities
 Centre of Nuclear Excellence (CoNE)

Given the Council’s unique position as a nuclear local authority, it is our duty to 
properly represent the interests of Copeland’s communities on matters concerning 
the nuclear sector, and to act in the best interests of the social and economic 
prosperity of the Borough.

1.2. The nuclear sector has dominated Copeland’s economy over several decades as 
traditional industries have declined. The 2017 Oxford Economics Report on The 
Economic Impact of Sellafield shows that Copeland’s economy is heavily dependent 
upon Sellafield Ltd and the associated supply chain. The infographic below highlights 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



some of the key facts from that report, which demonstrate the lack of local economic 
resilience and diversity, and therefore the need for a different economic model for 
Copeland.

1.3. In 2017, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) published 
the UK’s Industrial Strategy, formed around five foundations: Ideas, People, Place, 
Infrastructure and Business Environment. Under a new governance structure, the 
Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) has aligned its Strategy Groups to the 

Page 16



foundations of the Industrial Strategy, and its Sector Panels to the sectors that are 
relevant to Cumbria’s economy.

1.4. Over recent months, the LEP has developed a Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) for 
Cumbria and the newly formed Sector Panels of the LEP will develop sector-specific 
growth plans. Copeland Borough Council has representatives across these groups to 
identify key areas/sectors for the Borough in delivering the LIS to ensure that 
Copeland benefits from and plays a role in Cumbria’s economic growth.

2. Nuclear Sector Context

2.1. Sitting under the UK Industrial Strategy, the Nuclear Sector Deal is aligned to the five 
foundation, with three cross-cutting themes: Cost Competitiveness, Innovation and 
Diversity, and identifies a number of key targets for 2030:

 30% reduction in the cost of nuclear new build, through implementing a 
different approach;

 20% reduction in the cost of legacy waste management and 
decommissioning;

 For the sector to deliver £2bn of UK and international contract wins;
 To reach at least 40% women in nuclear.

There is opportunity, through the Deal, for Copeland to demonstrate to BEIS, the 
value of its capability, assets and skills in delivering these targets, and to attract 
investment in the area to support continuing development of world-leading nuclear 
expertise.

2.2. There is a a "growing mismatch" between current trends in energy investment and 
the paths to meeting the Paris Agreement and other sustainable development goals. 
Likewise, the UK Parliament Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy Select 
Committee launched an inquiry into financing energy infrastructure, in recognition of 
the hole in UK Energy Policy following investment decisions at Moorside and Wylfa.

2.3. In late 2018, Toshiba announced the wind-up of NuGeneration Limited due to a failure 
to secure investment in the project, which had intended to deliver 3.4GW of large-
scale, secure, low carbon nuclear capacity at the Moorside site in Copeland. The 
formation of the Moorside Strategic Partnership demonstrates cross-party 
commitment from local and central government and business leaders to ensure the 
delivery of a project at Moorside that is crucial to the UK’s energy future, and to the 
economic aspirations of the region.

2.4. In 2019, BEIS is due to make a multi-million pound investment in commercialisation 
of a number of advanced reactor technologies that could offer an alternative, 
cheaper, quicker, more flexible low carbon energy solution either instead of or 
alongside large scale nuclear. Copeland and West Cumbria’s nuclear capability, skills 
throughout the nuclear fuel cycle, assets, nuclear sites and land could provide a 
turnkey solution to deployment of a UK advanced modular reactor fleet, as well as 
potential for prototype or first of a kind deployments locally.

Page 17



2.5. Over coming years, a number of significant changes will occur as Sellafield’s focus 
shifts from reprocessing and legacy retrievals to decommissioning and environmental 
remediation:

 The end of reprocessing by 2020 represents around a 25% reduction in scope at 
Sellafield, and also removes a major revenue stream for the NDA, while new scope 
will continue to be developed as new opportunities are explored to deliver the 
site’s mission safer, sooner;

 Acceleration of High Hazard and Risk Reduction activities means that the level of 
hazard associated with legacy facilities on the Sellafield site will reduce sooner – 
all intolerable plants dealt with by 2040 and legacy retrievals will be complete. 
This means a significant proportion of Sellafield’s current scope will have been 
removed;

 More of the Sellafield scope will be delivered by the supply chain, through new 
partnerships such as the Programme and Project Partners (PPP) framework;

 Different skills demands on workers and the supply chain, driven by the increasing 
use of robotics and digital technologies. This could place Copeland at the forefront 
of the Industry 4.0/advanced manufacturing agenda and hence offer 
diversification and export opportunities;

 Sellafield has committed to delivering a saving of £1.4Bn to the NDA by 2020 and 
the same again by 2029;

 The NDA and Sellafield are committed to delivering better value to the taxpayer 
in order to meet the sector-wide Legacy Cost Reduction targets set out in the 
Nuclear Sector Deal, including a 20% reduction in cost of radioactive waste 
management and decommissioning.

2.6. The Transformation is an opportunity the NDA and Sellafield Ltd to work with partners 
to maximise the economic opportunities available, commercialise on capability 
developed in the sector, and to prepare the nuclear supply chain, and the wider 
communities that rely upon Sellafield’s current economic footprint, to become more 
diverse and resilient. This will help to address the economic risks highlighted by the 
Oxford Economics Report.

2.7. In 2018, the Public Accounts Committee published a report on the NDA’s Progress on 
Risk Reduction at Sellafield, which made a number of recommendation to BEIS, NDA 
and Sellafield Ltd in relation to improvement of performance in delivery and 
governance of risk reduction projects at Sellafield and the NDA’s local socio-economic 
contribution. The Council has since expressed an expectation that the NDA and 
Sellafield Ltd will engage closely with us and our partners to maximise UK 
government’s investment at Sellafield by extraction of social and economic value from 
the site, hence also meeting the NDA’s obligations under the Energy Act 2004.

2.8. Copeland Borough Council, with Sellafield Ltd, has developed a programme 
framework, built around six Social Impact Themes (aligned to the Sellafield Ltd Social 

Page 18



Impact Strategy), to establish a collaborative approach between Sellafield Ltd, supply 
chain partners and the Council to investment against identified local priorities.

3. Why now?

3.1. In 2016, Copeland Borough Council commissioned a Growth Strategy for the Borough 
to outline opportunities for investment towards stimulating economic growth in 
Copeland. The document concentrated on local strengths and sectors, such as the 
nuclear industry and what it can offer, with a balance of the potential from other 
sectors and the priority to diversify the economy.

3.2. Opportunities for inward investment and local growth at that point were heavily 
influenced by the Moorside/NuGen project, which is now stalled. At a time when 
there is also uncertainty over UK Energy Policy, and calls for governments to address 
climate and ecological threats, a new, updated Economic Vision is required that 
articulates the vision for Copeland, highlighting opportunities for investment and 
transformation of the local economy in support of UK Clean Growth.

4. Project Concept

4.1. Sitting under the Economic Vision will be a “pull-out” Nuclear Prospectus, covering a 
wider geography to capture West Cumbria’s nuclear value proposition.

4.2. The Economic Vision document will demonstrate Copeland’s current and potential 
economic contribution to the wider Cumbrian and UK economies and delivery of the 
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy and linked local deals. The Nuclear Prospectus will 
highlight the value of West Cumbria’s nuclear capability, skills and assets in delivery 
of the Nuclear Sector Deal. Both documents will link local contribution to delivery of 
UK Industrial Strategy, as shown in Figure 1, hence demonstrating the value of the 
area to the UK.

4.3. The Nuclear Prospectus will condense the existing fragmented messaging around 
West Cumbria’s nuclear sector into a concise “nuclear offer” that demonstrates West 
Cumbria’s value proposition to UK government.

4.4. The timescale for the document will extend to 2030 to align with the Nuclear Sector 
Deal timeframe.

Page 19



Figure 1 – Contribution to UK Industrial Strategy

4.5. This project will support the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Strategy and the 
following Strategic Outcomes:

SO1: For our towns, villages and streets to reflect the prosperity of the area.

SO3A: Attract businesses and professionals to Copeland and retain our talented 
young people.

SO5: Maximise our opportunities for growth.

4.6. As such, the key audiences for the Vision are:

1. Investors: UK government, developers and businesses
2. Young People: Graduates/young professionals and those still in training or 

education (i.e. future young professionals), as well as our young people that are 
at risk of being left behind.

5. Objectives

5.1. The key objective is to produce an Economic Vision and Nuclear Prospectus for 
Copeland that capture the opportunities, markets and priorities to secure investment 
into the Borough and attract future generations to establish their lives and careers in 
Copeland, by driving:

 Diversification/supply chain development
 Innovation and entrepreneurship
 Inward investment and business growth
 Attraction and retention of young people

Page 20



 Inclusive growth

5.2. The Prospectus will act as an instrument to:

 Clearly present the value of Copeland and West Cumbria’s nuclear sector 
capability, skills and assets to the wider UK economy, in delivering the Industrial 
Strategy, Clean Growth Strategy and Export Strategy;

 Coordinate investment decisions by UK government, NDA, Sellafield and supply 
chain partners against targeted objectives;

 Influence the UK Energy White Paper that is currently under development;
 Influence development of Phase 2 of the Nuclear Sector Deal and demonstrate 

how Place-specific capability can help to tackle the Nuclear Sector “Grand 
Challenges”, which are being developed by the Nuclear Sector Deal Strategy 
Groups;

 By securing buy-in of nuclear sector leaders, ensure that the NDA and Sellafield 
Ltd work with the Council and other partners to deliver a Transformation 
programme, which:
o Delivers the Sellafield mission faster and cheaper through adoption of 

skills, ideas and technologies from other sectors;
o Continues to develop world-leading nuclear supply chain capability in 

waste management and decommissioning;
o Informs preferential environmental, accommodation and transport 

strategies for the site, in line with the Council’s priorities;
o Develops a corporate culture/mindset that develops the behaviours 

required to underpin an economic model that attracts and retains talented 
professionals and a supply chain model that promotes diversity of 
opportunity for new and existing businesses/entrepreneurs/innovators;

o Contributes to Nuclear Sector Deal targets around cost reduction of 
decommissioning, enabling access to global export markets, and diversity;

6. Next Steps

6.1. A project brief for production of the Nuclear Prospectus has been issued to a supplier 
who has been engaged through an existing framework contract with the Council. The 
document will be developed by a programme of stakeholder engagement, with a 
target completion date of October 2019.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on  6 February 2019
	4 Nuclear Team Overview
	5 Nuclear Position Statements
	6 Nuclear Prospectus

